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MYTHOLOGICAL SIGNIFICANCE

With reference to the description written in Himvatakhanda, Bhalesh-
wor Mahadev appeared at the spot where Satidevi's ‘Bhala’ or the
forehead fell off from her dead body. It's believed that Satidevi, Shiva's
consort, gave up her life by jumping in a fire pyre at her father Daksha
Prajapati's yagna (sacred fire ritual) after Daksha insulted her hus-
band Shiva in front of scores of gods and goddess invited at religious
ceremony.

An enraged Shiva then carried her dead body on his back and walked
across the world like a madman for a long span of time, without taking
note of Satidevi's decaying body. Different 'sakti- centers’ were estab-
lished at sites where different parts of Satidevi's body fell in course of
Lord Shiva's mourning. A temple was erected at the same site where
Bhaleshwor Mahadev appeared. The legend of Bhaleshwor Mahadev
is also associate with Gandharva, a low ranking Hindu deity, named
Sumukha. Sumukha forcedly kissed Rambha, an angel who had re-
cently retired as a courtier at heaven, believed to be Indra’s (king of
God's) Kingdom. Rambha then cursed Sumukha for his misdemean-
or after which he was forced to live on Earth living his adobe in the
heaven. Sumukha was wandering around the mortal world while liv-
ing the curse when met with a sage, Galab, who suggested a way out
of Sumukha to repent and break the curse. Sage Galab advised Su-
mukha that he should offer prayer before Bhaleshwor Mahadev after
purifying himself every day as penance. Fortunately, in due course,
Mahadev was pleased and he blessed Sumukha, following which he
settled down with Rambha. Sumukha was also taken in as a close

. aide by Bhaleshwor. The Himvatkhanda also has another folklore tied

in with the Bhaleshwor Mahadev. A Brahmin named Birupas was suf-
fering from leprosy as a result of the sins he had committed in his

= past life. The leper Birupas was wandering aimlessly in his misery
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when he came across Sage Nemuni who advise him to visit 64 Shi-
va lingas as atonement for his transgression. Birupas is said to have
visited Bhaleshwor while making round of 64 different Shiva temples.
It is believed that the people who come here to worship Bhaleshwor
get their wishes fulfilled and that they will find abode in the Shivalok
or Lord Shiva's world in their afterlife.
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BOTTOM STATION

The Bottom Station of the Cable Car building is situated at a height of
1596 meters from sea level. There is sufficient parking facility for 200
cars and 500 motor bikes. The beautifully displayed water fountain al-
ways welcomes its visitors regardless for any seasons. Cafe Fountain at
the base of the building serves you with a delicious food whether you
prefer to have a breakfast, lunch or dinner. With 150 seating capacity ,
Cafe fountain is a sure win for all ages with it varied menu option.

TOP STATION

The Top Station of the Cable Car landing is situated at a height of 2520
meters above sea level. Once on the top you can enjoy the beauties of
snow clad mountain ranges, valley and community forest around. Right
at the base of this building is located a bar named Bar@2520 which is
the highest alivated bar in town. Various Grocery Shops are available on
the way towards Temple area.
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ABOUT US

Chandragiri Hills, seven KM from Kalanki, lies on the
south- west of Kathmandu Valley and is 2551 meters from
sea level. Soaring peaks and breath taking views of whole
KathmanduValley covered with lush green blanket of flora
makes Chandragiri truly a great bountiful and pristine land-
scape. The panoramic view of Himalayan Ranges from An-
napurna to Everest and Kathmandu Valley makes anyone
- feel like seeing whole Nepal from this hill.

CABLE CAR

The single length of Cable Car is approximately 2.5 Km. There are 11 foun-
dation towers erected till the hill top with the highest tower being 38 me-
ters from the base. There are 38 passenger gondolas, 1 maintenance and 2
goods carrying carriers. The maximum capacity for each is 8 persons. The
highest speed of the gondolas is 5 m/s and it takes 9 minutes with this
speed to reach the Top Station. This technology is from the world renowned
Austrian company called Doppelmayr.

VIEW TOWER / FINE DINNING

Constructed at the astounding height of 2547 meters above sea level, this
View Tower is ideally located for viewing the panoramic Himalayan ranges
from Annapurna to Everest along with beautiful snow clad mountains. The
amazing view from here would be the community forest and valleys along-
side. The restaurant on a Fine Dining concept just below the View Tower
with 80 seats capacity serves you with delicious delicacies. Further down at
the bottom the available food court serves you with buffet meal along with
ale-carte menus.
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AMPHITHEATRE CHILDREN’S PLAYGROUND

This open air venue theater is used just to relax and for some chit chats.  Well equipped with slides, seesaw, swings and physical rides, this play

Several kinds of activities can be carried out to cater as to the require-  ground for kids is a great source of engaging the little ones. The artificial

ment of guest needs. grass on the bottom serves added source of greenery along with the safe-
ty features of the kids.

-
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WALL CLIMBING ZIP- LINE

Chandragiri's Wall Climbing is outdoor climbing located at 2550 Me- If you are seeking for some adventure, Zip lining may be one of them. The
ters above sea Level, which makes it the highest artificial climbing wall two Zip Lines at Chandragiri measure 100m & 200m long, gives you thrill-
in Nepal. We opened this wall in 15t Baisha2078 with vision of promot- ing experience. You will undoubtedly have an excellent time in lap of nature
ing Nepalese sports climbing community and for our guest who want while witness an amazing view of hills and mountains. A single individual
to experience the thrill and enjoyment of climbing wall. may enjoy the ride at once.

SWING MULTI PURPOSE HALL

No matter how experienced or adventures you are, the couple swing The modern hall well equipped with required A/V can accommodate up
located at Top Station of Chandragiri Hills stands with great challenge to 200 persons for any sorts of corporate or social events depending upon

for all thrill lovers. Our couple swing is the highest swing located inside ~ various sorts seating arrangements.
Kathmandu Valley at an altitude of 2550m above sea level. Hanging on

top of the Chandragiri Hills and overlooking the Kathmandu Valley with

panoramic mountain view in front makes it one of the most attractive

and adventurous activities that can be done at Chandragiri Hills.
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CHANDRAGIRI HILLS RESORT

Nestled in the lap of Chandragiri Hills, Chandragiri Hills Resort is an ideal place to escape the stress of
modern world and breathe the fresh mountain air. Reaching there by Cable Car makes this get away
more interesting. This hide out offers jaw dropping views of Himalayan ranges from Annapurna to Mt.
Everest. You can enjoy the breathtaking panoramic views of snow- capped mountains and Kathmandu
Valley from one of 100 accommodation only at Chandragiri Hills Resort.

Rooms: Our 4 building block are well- appointed with 100 rooms which includes 62 deluxe rooms, 30 ex-
ecutive rooms, 6 suites & 2 presidential suites. We also have 2 accessible rooms for our especially abled
guests.

DELUXE ROOMS

These rooms are perfect for anyone seeking to spend quality time together indulging own self in
the nature. The modern in room furniture's and amenities has been well designed & decorated for
your comfort and need while the balcony opening towards the majestic mountain ranges gives a
spectacular view followed by fresh air for breathing.

EXECUTIVE ROOMS

These well executed 30 rooms are bright and airy giving enough space for ultimate relaxation.
Most of the rooms are located on the top floors of the building and decorated with custom de-
signed handmade furniture’s. These rooms open towards a large balcony which gives you enough
space for some morning stretches or yoga session admiring the natural beauty of the place.
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SUITE ROOMS

These spacious rooms are set magnificently over three floors and an area of 72
sq meters from where you can see marvelous view of the mountains with fresh
air for breathing. Our suite rooms have a separate living room to spend amazing
quality time. The 8 suite rooms are well decorated and designed with furniture's
and amenities for you ease.

DINING

This beautifully appointed all day dining restaurant gives you the opportunity to
enjoy the spectacular views whilst you enjoy you breakfast, lunch and dinner. Our
superb Chefs provide a par excellence variety of gastronomical treats to suit your
appetite.

INFINITY POOL

With the backdrop of Himalayan ranges & overlooking Kathmandu valley, this out-
door pool has been designed with both relaxation and leisure in mind. An open
Jacuzzi in the center with children’s pool attached to the side, you can spend time
gently swimming or relaxation in the Jacuzzi whilst your children play safely near-
by.

CONFERENCE HALL

Surrounded by clean air, stunning mountain views and green forests, this is the
best place to get a fresh perspective while enjoying our exemplary service. With
our delicious food and the greatest views.



REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS
Registration No: 124325/070/071

VAT No.: 303814991

Name of Company : Chandragiri Hills Ltd.

Category: Public Limited

Registered Address : Panipokhari, Kathmandu -03
+977-1-4002525
info@chandragirihills.com

www.chandragirihills.com

Business Operation Address : Thankot, Kathmandu
+977-14312515

Banking Partner : Prabhu Bank Ltd.

Auditor : PYC & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Particular of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies

S.N  Name of Company Holding/ Subsidary % Of share held

1 Multipokhara Development Pvt. Ltd Subsidiary 100%

2 Chandragiri Hills Paragliding Ltd Subsidiary 100%
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Hem Raj Dhakal
Chairman

. A= .
Mr. Uttam Kumar Nepal Mr. Kalyan Gurung Mr. Dilip Shekar Shrestha
Director Director Director

Mrs. Uma Bista G.C Mr. Prem Raj Joshi Mr. Jhalak Raj Sharma
Director Director Company Secretar
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Bipd. with Thie lesaude of Chantered dcooustits of Mo © 55 A member firm of

Charterad Accountanis
Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of
Chandragiri Hills Limited

Report on the Consolidsted Financlal Statements:
Crpinion

We have aodited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of M/s Chandragiri Hills Limited
{referred as * Company”] which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as-on
Ashadh 31", 2080 (167 July, 2023), and Consolidated Statement of Prafit or Loss, Consolidated
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes ta the Financial Statemants,
including Significant Accounting Policies.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us , and
based on the consideration of report of other awditor on separate financial staterments of subsidiaries as
audited by other auditor, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements present fakrly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the company as on Ashadh 317 2080 (16 July, 2023}, and its financial
performance; and its cash fiows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial RBeporting
Standards [NFRSs),

Basis for opinlon

Wi conducted our audit in sccordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing [N5As), Cur responsibilities
under these standards are further described In the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit on the
Financial Statemants section of our report. We are indepondent of the group in actordance with the
ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Prefessional Accountants togather with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our sodit of the financial statements, and we have Tulfliled cur other ethical
reaponsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN'S handbook of The Code af Ethics
for Professional Accountants. We belleve that the audit svidence we have obtained alang with the
consideration of audit report of other suditor referred in "Other Matter” paragraph below, is sufficient
and appropriate to provide & basis for opinion on the consalideted and standalone financial statemant,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were af mast significance (n our
audit of financlal ctaterments of the current period, These matters were addressed (n the context of aur
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
@ separate oplnion an thase matters,

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated In
our Report, =

G.P.O.Box; 12437, New Plaza, Putalisadak, Kathmandu, Nepal
Phone.; 4531951, 4529996, Fax: 00977-1-4436537, Email: info@capyc.com.np
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{Reference to
[financiol stoterments)

Company has several revenue streams, ke the
Cable car, Resort cperation, Amusement Park,
biarketing & serdlces sEpments. The revenue
-streams are different in nature and underlying
rigks differs by revenue stream.

Revenue from Resort and cable car dperation B
the most significant amount In the consolidated
income statement and #t is & key performance
indication to which the marmgement and users of
the firancial statements pay particular attenfion,
I addithan, istenss compétition b the tourim
Industry in Kathmandu, which s the key location af
the Company operations, has significantly affected
the compamy’s operating performance. There are
therefore risk: with respect to the timing. of
FEVENE TECognltion,

in the mesort operstion segments, the comgpany
has deliveries, which can be considered
indridaslly  significant. The resont  operation
spgment's tevenues conasl of malnly fream room
and food and beverage component transactions
Revenue from those sfreams s moorded under
cable car operation in the inftisl slage and
transferred 1o related revenue head after closure
of financlal year, Therefore, we have assessed that
there Is & risk of misstatement of the financlal
staternents related to transactions octwrring close
to the year-end, & transactions could be recorded
in the wrong segment heading.

mecagnition i the mesorm - operation segments

cavered:

» Jfusessed the sppropristeness of company's
reverre recognition accounting policies in the
ling with NFR5-15 and Further testing the
secounting of revenue in the books of account
theraaf,

= Agsessing the implementation as well a3 testing
af the operating - effectivensss of the ey
controls associated to revenes_

= Assessing the recognition of revenuss on
acerual basis by testing eatres and accoruals
affecting revenues based on the dabvery terms
in sales and defhvery documents: or  system
generated reports,

= Agsessing amd Lesting the company’s T westem
and ity intermal controby related to the revenue
cycle by making enguiry of responsible
axecutives, gaming an understanding of the
controls and selecting representative samplas
te test the operation of the designed controls
which respond 1o the aboe risks,

« Applying @ sampling method to  seleny
agreements related 10 revenus recognition 1o
risess  whether  revenue  recognition  was
consistent with the conditons af the relavant
agreerment, and whether it wat in compiianes
with the company's policy.

# On a2 samphkng basis, sSzaminkeg supparting
documents for. actual revenue trEnsactions -
occurring duning the year and near the end of
the aocointing period,

* Heviewing credit notes and reversals of reyvenue
Lrandactiong on sample basis,

& Performing  analytical grocedures on
dizaggregated data to detect possible
lrregularities 0 sales transactions throughout
the period, particularly for accounting entries
made through journal wouchers,

# Eyaluated the sdeguacy of disclosures in the
financial staterments.
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and confrals due to the pervasive nature and
complezity al the T envdronment, the large
volume of transacthons and the mliance on
automated and IT dependant manual controb.
Among others, these are koy to ensuting operating
gffectiveness of IT dependent application-based
pontrols &kks, (F the IT contral over financial data
is Impraper, them s fiek of wrong reparting to the
imamagement, regulstor a3 well a5  other
stakeholders.

it procedures indedes:

Test of the operating efectiveness of ths
campany’s  access  [ontrefs  ower  tha
itformation  systermns  that sre oitical 1o
financiel reporting. We inspected requests of
thanges to syitems for appropriate approval
and suthorization,

Evaluated whether IT guidelines- have  bean
formulated and assess the contracts with the
T wendor.

Linderstanding, where relevant, changss were
made fothe IT eantrols and applications during
the audis percd that may have a sgnificant
impact on financial reporting.

wg ﬁlnn'-l.-d an thl.'.'irn an thr::nnpﬂw operates
in & legal and regulitory ervironment that is
exposed to dgnificant Higation and similar risks
ariking Trom disputes and regulatory proceedings
Spch matters are subject to many, uncerfajnties
and the outcome may be difficull to preduct, These
uncertainties inherently affect the amount and
timing of potential outflows with respect 1o the
provtsions which have boen pstablished and other
contingent Babilktien

g"‘mﬂ-ﬁ .I"T-.-aa "1'"“..._.'_
ELl -l -~
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Faanciol stotemeitz)

Property, Plani and equipment §§ evaluaisd for
tecoverability based on expected future cash flows
if there are indicators of potentizsl Impairmenl
Auditing management's asseasment of potential
Impalrment of property, plant and equipment was
of highly jedgmental due to the shgnificant

[ tReference 1o the note .14 n the consofidmed | «

it obisined B undSrEtIding, Svalistbed '

Audit procedures includes:

Understanding, eviaiusting the design and
testing the operational effectiveness of the ey
contrals  over the legal  provision  and
fontingency prodesges,

Engubred with those charged with. EovErnanie
to obtain their wipws &0 the status of &l
significant fitigation and regulstory matters.
Erguire with the (ompany's Intermel legal
counsel for sl significant  Btigation and
regulatery matters and  inspocted  imernal
notes and reporls.

Pscescpd the methodologies an which the
proviskan @mounts are based, recalculated the
provissons, amd tested the cosmpletendss and
apcuracy of the undoeryiag information
Evalunted the adequacy of financial statemen
disclosore in respect of contingenchas.

deskgn and tested the operating effectiveness
of controls over the Company's review process
aver impalrment  besting of  property  and

anulpment, including contnols et
manaparment’s review  of  the sgnificam
assumptions deteribed above,

Our testing of the Company’s Impairment

estimation required in determinkng the astimated nisEssmant Inthuded, amang other
IL'I-EH- period expected futuse cash {lows, discount procedures, !ﬂluﬂ.‘l@i "Ih: I-lp'rlﬁt-ll'll
““u..' ..'~ ma of 7
'r'-c
- (o THE S -"
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rate and/or capitalization rates for the propertics |

gubject. to @ recoverability test  andf
or a fair value messurement. In particular, the
expected future cash flows are based on
assumpthons, Including the projactions of revenues
and expenses based on estimated . ghowth rates
that are lorward looking, coubd be affected by
future economic and market conditions, and
sensitive to discount rate andfor capitalizathon
rate changes

The Eﬂﬂplﬂ'l' HIS lmmmr:u i :ﬂﬂuidlirll! -I-I'I|
Equity Instrument and Term deposit,

These investments are recognized ot falr value
through peafit or lots statement. Determination of
fair value is subject to a cgnifiant level of
Judgrmant. Therafare, theoe &5 & risk that the value
of investments may be misstated. Refer to note
A5 and 3.7

ia) — “bvestments”
stELEMERs,

of the standalone financial

gssomptions and testing the completeness and
accuraey of the undertying data used by
Company to develon the expected Future cash
ficws, if applicable, for their propertees.

# We compared the significant assumptions used
by management to  current industry and
eooasamic trends, changss 10 the company's
strategy and other relevant Tactors

s W held discussions with management aboul
the cufment stalus of potential transactions
ard  mbout management's [judgmenis o
underitand the probability of futime events
that could affect the hold period and other
cash flow astismplions for the propertias.

ﬂhulnlng an undrr:nmllna. of management's
procestes and controds with regard 1o testing the
impairrent of Investment in unguoted  equity
instruments in sobsidiaries and  investment in
equity instrirment, oar procedures Included the
folkoeing:

- Evaluated the approprizteness of the Company’s
assumphiont  with comparable  benchmarks §n
relation to key inputs such as long-term growth
rates and discownt rates;

- pszppied the appropristensis of the forecast
cash flows within the budgeted period based on
oo wnderstanding of the business]

- Evaluated the appropriateness of the related
discleinres in Note 3 6 ol the stendalone financial
statements.

- The unquoted egquily securities whise falr value
cannot be abtainad from the Level & and Lovel 2
inputs are valised wsing the most recent svailable
et worth per shares. However, unguoted equity
imstrummieat were valped at thelr face value dus 1o
unaeailabiity of such dota at the measurement
date,

Other Mattor

we did not awdit the Tnancial statement and other firancial infermation of two subakifiaries, Mulgi
Pokhars Development Pyt Ltd, and Chandragin Paragliding Lid. These finahdal statements and afher
financial information have been audited by cther suditors whao have expressed ungualified opinion on
those statements. Those reports have been fumished to us by the mamgmmuﬁ;’wau,_ nplnlm an
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those financial statements in o far as 1t relates to the aocounts and disciosure included in respect of
these sirbsidiaries, are based solely on the report of other susditors.

Asgets (mcluding  receivable balances) and labiities reported In segment reporting part of financisl
statesnents (3.22) s limited 16 the svallable information avallable to us. Ala, such reported statement
doesn’t reflate actual reguirement operating .

Cur opinion -on the consolidated financial statement and our repart on other Bgal and regolatory
requirement below are not modified in respect of the abowe matters with respect to cur reliance an the
work dane,

Other information

The managamant s responsibbe for the preparation af the other infarrnation. The ather information
comprises the information included in the mamagement report and other progress reports but does not
Inclode the financial statements and curauditor’s repart therson,

Our opinion on the consolidated financial satemenis does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of sssurance conchetion thereon.

In connection with our aedit of the consolidated financisl satements, cur regponsibility is to read the
ather information, compare with the financial statement of the subsidiaries sudited by the other
aoditor, to the extent it related to these entithes and, in doing 26, comader whaother, bazed onwork done
by us on consolidated and standalone- financial stetement, the  iformstion tharsin B msterally
Inconstitent with the (manclial datements,

Resporsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for the Financlal Statements-

The: mapagement & respongible for the preparation and fajir pregeotation of the consolidated and
standalone finapcial sisiements in sccordance with Nepal Financisl Reporting Stamfards. This
respansibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting recards for safeguarding of the assets
of the entity and for preventing and detecting fraied and other |rregularities; selection and application o
appropriste secounting policies ; makkng judgment and estimate that are reacsonable and prudent; and
the design; implementation and maimisnance of adeguare internal fnancial contral, that nre operating
effectvely for endurbng the scturacy and completeness of the acoounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of consoldated and standalons financisd siatermsnt that ghve a fras and
fair wiew and are free from material misstaternent , whether due to fraud o error,

In preparing the nsncial statements, management i responsible for assessing the Company™s ability to
continue a5 a going concern, dischosing. as applicable matters related (o golng concern and using the
going concern beals of accounting unlpss mansgement eithar intends 1o liquidate the Company or to
onpsr operations, or has no realistic altermative but 1o oo o,

Those charged with governance are responsible far owersesing the Company's _Eundﬂ reporting
PIOOESL. .

i
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Auditor’s Responsibllities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as o whobs
are free from material misstaterment, whether due to fravd or error, and (o lsue an suditor’s report
that includes our opinien. Reasonable atsorance s 2 high lavel of assurance, bat & not 3 guarantee that
an audit conducted In accordancs with NSA"s will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or-orror and are considered moterial if, individually or in aggregate,
they could reasanably expect to infleence the sconomic decisions of vzers taken on the basis of these
financial statements, Further responsshilities of the auditor have been mentioned in Appendix-1.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirement

= e have obtained information end exglanations acked for, which; o the best knowledge and belief,
wers necewsary for the purpose of our audit.

®  In our eginion, Lhe Consolidated Staternent of Financial Position as on Ashadh 31, 2080 (187 July,
2023, and Comsofidated Statement of Profit or Loss, Consoclidated Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Stntement of Changes in Eguity and Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes to the Financlal Statements, including Significant
Accounting  Policies applied by the Company have been prepared In accordance with the
regquirements: of the Companies Act, 2063 and are in agreement with the book of accounts
maintained by the Coempany including refevant records relating to preparation of the aforesasd
financial statements have been kept so far as |t appears from owr examination of those books and
record of the Company.

#  Tothe best of our information and according to explanation glven to vy and w0 far appeared from
our examination of the books of account of the Compury, W have #ol come sornss cases wherne
Boird of Direcicrs o any employees of the Company have acted contrary to the provisions of law
relating to the accounts, of committed any misappropriation of caused loss or damage 1o the
company or acted ina manner o jeopardite the interest and secarity of the comgany.

# The operaton nf_:mnpam- is within its. perisdiction,

Yagya Raj Bhatia,
Partner
PYC & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants

Dater 2080/09/03

UDAN Mo 231238 PCANDT4EYHE We

Fage & of 7
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Appendix- 1

s a part of audit in sccordance of NSAs, we exarcised professional judgment and maintain professanal
shepticism throoghout the audit of Chandragin Hills Limited for FY FOT9/B0I 2022/ 2023) We also!

[dertified and assessed the risk of materisl misstatement of the financial statement whether dus 1o
frausd or error, design and perform sudit procedure responsive to thoze rishs, and obtalned audit
pvidence that b sufficlent 2nd appropriate to provide an cpinton. The risk of not detecting a material
mrisstatement resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting from eeror, a5 fraud may inwoilve
collusion, fergery, Intentional oméssion, misrepresentation, of the override of internal control,
Obtained an understanding of internal control redevant to the sudit In arder to design alechit
procedures that are appropriste in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control,
Concluded an appropriateness of management e of going concern basis of accounting and, based
in awdit tvidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 1o events or contfition that
may-cast significant doubt on the compeny's ability to continue 25 going concesn, il wie concluded
that & material uncortainty exksts, we are required 1o draw #ttention in our auditor’s report 1o the
related disclosures in the consolidated financlal statements or, i such disclosune i Inadeguate, to
modify our opinian, Our conclusions are based on the zudit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors regorl. However, future events or conditions may ¢ause the Company 10 cease to continue
as gotag conoarm.
Eusluated the appropriatensss of accounting policies used as the readionableness ol aecounting
estimates and relsted distlosunes made by managemant
Evalugted the overall gresentation, structure, and content of financial statement including the
dischasures, and whether the financial statement represents the underlying transactions and events
ir @ manner that achieves falr presentation
Obtained sufficient approgeiate audit evidence regarding the financial informatian of the emtities or
buskness #ctivities ta express an opinion on the financial statemednts We remain solely resparible
for our-audit opinkon
W commuinicated. with those charges with governants regarding, among other matiess, the
planed scope and timing of the audit and significant audit finings, Including any significan
deficiencies in nteral control that we identify during ouwr oudil.
We also provided those charged with governance with a stalement that we Isave complied with
relevant ethical reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matine that may reasonably be though to bear on our mndependence, and
where apglicable, related standards..
From the matier communicated with those charged with governance, we detenmine those matbers
that were of mose significance in the sudit of the consolidated financial statements of current periad
and are tharefore the key audit matters, Wie describe these mattens in our auditesr’s report unless
law or reguiation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in axtremely rare
circumstances, we determine that @ mattes should not be communicated in our report bocause the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to cutweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication. e T
Ve g
i‘{-.l'gtr/ -.-5-':". .-
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Chandragiri Hills Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As on 16th July 2023 (31st Ashadh 2080)

Figures in NPR

Particulars Notes Group Standalone
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Assets
Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 41A 3,234,606,725 3,230,984,752 3,058,706,725 3,055,084,752

Intangible Assets 41A 3,136,531 3,447,746 3,136,531 3,447,746

Right of use Assets 4.1B 26,688,700 27,609,000 43,033,874 44,862,239

Investment in subsidiary 4.2 A - - 180,500,000 180,500,000

Other Investments 4.2 B 155,200,000 77,600,000 155,200,000 77,600,000

Deferred Tax Assets 4.3 - - - -

Non Current Deposits 4.4 499,874 499,874 499,874 499,874
Total Non-Current Assets 3,420,131,831 3,340,141,372 3,441,077,005 3,361,994,611
Current Assets

Inventory 4.5 27,772,074 21,967,514 27,772,074 21,967,514

Current Tax Assets 4.6 7,644,267 5,735,026 7,254,267 5,540,026

Other Current Assets 47 73,353,343 145,178,772 95,439,456 168,788,561

Receivables and current deposit 4.8 26,299,961 20,897,987 26,277,961 20,897,987

Cash and cash equivalents 49 239,781,028 89,626,551 239,273,233 89,126,551
Total Current Assets 374,850,673 283,405,849 396,016,991 306,320,638
Total Assets 3,794,982,504 3,623,547,221 3,837,093,996 3,668,315,249
Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Share Capital 410A 1,534,091,000 1,534,091,000 1,534,091,000 1,534,091,000

Reserves 4108B (358,769,294) (462,567,419) (294,066,136) (395,546,393)
Total Equities 1,175,321,706 1,071,523,581 1,240,024,864 1,138,544,607
Non- Current Liabilities

Long Term Borrowing 411 2,088,474,498 2,250,959,199 2,088,474,498 2,250,959,199

Employee Benefit 412 15,088,590 10,222,293 15,088,590 10,222,293

Deferred Tax Liabilities 43 74,199,335 10,044,848 73,914,655 9,912,329

Lease Liability 418B 32,126,453 30,842,230 50,006,632 48,869,665
Total Non-current Liabilities 2,209,888,877 2,302,068,570 2,227,484,374 2,319,963,486
Current Liabilities

Short Term Borrowing 413 196,404,790 112,553,750 196,404,790 112,553,750

Trade and other Payable 4.14 213,367,130 137,401,319 173,179,967 97,253,406
Total Current Liabilities 409,771,921 249,955,069 369,584,758 209,807,156
Total Liabilities 2,619,660,797 2,552,023,639 2,597,069,132 2,529,770,642
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,794,982,504 3,623,547,221 3,837,093,996 3,668,315,249

"Significant Accounting policies and notes to the account is an intergal part of Financial statement.”

As per our report of even date

Binayak Pokhrel
Finance Head

Shyam Tandukar
Act. General Manager

Hem Raj Dhakal
Chairman

Uttam Kumar Nepal
Director

Yagya Raj Bhatta, FCA
Partner
PYC & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Uma Bista GC
Director

Kalyan Gurung
Director

Dilip Shekhar Shrestha
Director

Prem Raj Joshi
Director

Date: 19th Dec 2023
Place: Kathmandu
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Chandragiri Hills Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

As on 16th July 2023 (31st Ashadh 2080)

Figures in NPR

Particulars Notes | Group Standalone
Current Year Previous Year Current Year | Previous Year

Revenue from Operations 4.15 913,416,423 668,978,437 | 913,416,423 668,978,437
Less: Operation Expenses 416 113,471,750 104,931,039 113,471,750 104,931,039
Net Operating Revenue 799,944,673 564,047,399 | 799,944,673 564,047,399
Other Income 417 14,052,221 16,140,971 14,052,221 16,140,971
Administrative Expenses 418 104,711,155 97,169,518 | 104,470,376 97,050,093
Personnel Expenses 4.19 130,076,663 95,103,406 | 130,076,663 95,103,406
Advertisement Expenses 4.20 3,308,825 3,792,520 3,308,825 3,792,520
Depreciation and Ammortization Expens- |4.21 114,176,588 122,997,731 | 115,084,653 123,905,796
es
Profit from operations 461,723,662 261,125,196 | 461,056,376 | 260,336,556
Finance Expenses 4.22 283,215,490 227,744,702 | 285,018,234 229,560,832
Profit Before Tax 178,508,172 33,380,494 | 176,038,142 30,775,723
Income Tax Expense
Deferred Tax (Income)/Expenses 4.3 64,154,487 14,044,902 64,002,326 13,912,383
Net Profit for the Year 114,353,684 19,335,592 | 112,035,816 16,863,340
Profit/Loss from Discontinued operation
Earning per share
Earnings Per Share(NPR) )
Diluted Earnings Per Share(NPR) 7.45 1.26 7.30 1.10

7.45 1.26 7.30 1.10

“Significant Accounting policies and notes to the account is an intergal part of Financial statement.”

Binayak Pokhrel
Finance Head

Shyam Tandukar
Act. General Manager

Um a Bista GC
Director

Kalyan Gurung
Director

Date: 19th Dec 2023
Place: Kathmandu
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Hem Raj Dhakal
Chairman

Dilip Shekhar Shrestha
Director

Uttam Kumar Nepal

Director

As per our report of even date

Yagya Raj Bhatta, FCA

Partner
PYC & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Prem Raj Joshi

Director



Chandragiri Hills Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As on 16th July 2023 (31st Ashadh 2080)

Figures in NPR

Particulars

Group

Standalone

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year Previous Year

Profit for the Year

114,353,684

19,335,592 112,035,816 16,863,340

Other Comprehensive Income:

Items that will be reclassified to Income State-
ment:

Investment in subsidiary

Investment in Unquoted Shares

Deferred Tax Implication of acutuarial gain/
(losses)

Items that may be reclasssfied subsequently to
income statement:

Avaiable-for-sale-investments:

Net Valuation gains taken to equity

Reclassfied to income statement

Other Comprehensive income for the year net
of taxation

Total Comprehensive Income

114,353,684

19,335,592

112,035,816 | 16,863,340

“Significant Accounting policies and notes to the account is an intergal part of Financial statement.”

Binayak Pokhrel
Finance Head

Shyam Tandukar
Act. General Manager

Um a Bista GC
Director

Kalyan Gurung
Director

Date: 19th Dec 2023
Place: Kathmandu
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Chairman
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Director

As per our report of even date

Uttam Kumar Nepal
Director

Yagya Raj Bhatta, FCA
Partner
PYC & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Prem Raj Joshi
Director



Chandragiri Hills Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As on 16th July 2023 (31st Ashadh 2080)

Figures in NPR

Particulars Group Standalone

Current Year Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit Before Tax 178,508,172 33,380,494 176,038,142 30,775,724
Adjustments for non-cash items and non-operat-
ing adjustments
Prior period Adjustment (10,555,559) - (10,555,559) -
Depreciation and ammortization expenses 114,176,588 122,997,731 115,084,653 123,905,796
Finance Expenses 283,215,490 227,744,702 285,018,234 229,560,832
Changes in Operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets 58,709,653 57,111,534 60,450,329 58,953,234
Changes in operating liabilities 80,832,109 (39,098,445) 80,792,859 (39,109,570)
Net Cash from Operating Activities 704,886,453 402,136,016 706,828,658 404,086,016
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment (117,487,347) (65,685,135) (118,395,412 (66,593,200)
Changes in Right of use assets 920,300 (27,609,000) 1,828,365 (44,862,239)
Investment in Other Investment (77,600,000) (48,800,000) (77,600,000) (48,800,000)
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (194,167,047) | (142,094,135) (194,167,047) | (160,255,439)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Calls in advance received
Dividend paid to ordinary shareholders, net of scrip
Share capital issued - - - -
Changes in Lease Liability 1,284,223 30,842,230 1,136,967 48,869,665
Finance Expenses (283,215,490) (227,744,702) (285,018,234) (229,560,832)
Proceed /(Repayment) of Borrowings (78,633,661) (69,330,000) (78,633,661) (69,330,000)
Net Cash flows from financing activities (360,564,928) | (266,232,472) (362,514,928) | (250,021,167)
Net Increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equiv- 150,154,478 (6,190,591) 150,146,683 (6,190,591)
alents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 89,626,551 95,817,142 89,126,551 95,317,142
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash & cash
equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 239,781,028 89,626,551 239,273,233 89,126,551

"Significant Accounting policies and notes to the account is an intergal part of Financial statement.”

Binayak Pokhrel
Finance Head

Shyam Tandukar
Act. General Manager

Uma Bista GC
Director

Kalyan Gurung
Director

Date: 19th Dec 2023
Place: Kathmandu
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Hem Raj Dhakal
Chairman

Dilip Shekhar Shrestha

Director

Uttam Kumar Nepal
Director

As per our report of even date

Yagya Raj Bhatta, FCA

Partner
PYC & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Prem Raj Joshi
Director
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Chandragiri Hills Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts

Fiscal Year 2022/23 (2079/80)

1. General Information of Reporting Entity

Chandragiri Hills Limited (herein referred as “Company”), previously named as Kathmandu Funpark Pvt. Ltd.,
was incorporated as Pvt. Ltd Co. at the Office of Company Registrar having its registration no 64533/067/067
with registered address as Panipokhari, Kathmandu, Nepal. Later, the Company has been converted into Public
Limited Company having its Registration no 124325/070/071 with effect from 2071/03/32.

The authorized Capital of the Company is Rs. 2 Arba and its Issued Capital is Rs. 1.53 Arba. The paid-up Capital of
the Company is Rs. 1.53 Arba as on 2080/03/31.

The Company has started its operation from Shrawan 24, 2073. The Company is principally engaged in operation
of cable car, restaurants & retail stores, resort and amusement park.

The consolidated financial statement of Company as at fiscal year ended 16% July, 2023 comprises the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group” and individually referred to as “Standalone”)

2. Basis of Preparation

2.1 Statement of Compliance

Standalone Financial Statements of the Company comprises of financial Statement of the Company prepared in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Framework (NFRS) recommended by the Accounting Standards Board
of Nepal and pronounced by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal which confirm, in material respect,
to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standard Board
(IASB).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group comprise of Consolidated Statement of Financial Position,
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Consoli-
dated Statement of Cash Flows and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared as per NFRS 10 “Consolidated Fi-
nancial Statements”. The consolidation principles remain unchanged as against previous year. The consolidated
statements comprise of account balances of subsidiaries Multi-Pokhara Development Pvt. Ltd. and Chandragiri
Hills Paragliding Ltd.

2.2 Accounting Conventions

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared on the historical cost convention except for cer-
tain financial instruments, which are measured at their fair values as disclosed in the respective notes as re-
quired. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

If third party information, such as market quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the man-
agement assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations
meet the requirements of the approved accounting standards as applicable, including the level in the fair value
hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market observable data as far as pos-
sible. Fair Value for measurement and/ or disclosure purposes in these Financial Statements is determined on
such a basis, except for, measurements that have some similarities to Fair Value but are not Fair Value, such as
Net Realizable Value in NAS 2 “Inventories” or Value in use in NAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis where the accounting policies and judg-
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ments as required by the standards are consistently used and in case of deviations disclosed specifically.

2.3 Reporting Period and approval of Financial Statements

The Company/Group prepares financial statement in accordance with the Nepalese financial year using Nepal-
ese calendar.
The corresponding dates for Gregorian calendar are as follows:

Particulars Nepalese Calendar Date / Gregorian Calendar Date / Period
Period

Comparative SFP* Date 32" Ashadh 2079 16t July 2022

Comparative reporting | 1% Shrawan 2078 — 32™ Ashadh 17% July 2021 — 16™ July 2022

period 2079

NFRS SFP* Date 31t Ashadh 2080 16t July 2023

NFRS reporting period 15t Shrawan 2079 — 31t Ashadh 17 July 2022 — 16% July 2023
2080

* SFP = Statement of financial position

The accompanied Financial Statements have been adopted by the Board of Directors on its board meeting held
on 2080/09/03 and have been recommended for approval by shareholders in the 14" Annual General Meeting
to be held on 2080/09/26.

2.4 Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are denominated in nearest Nepalese rupees, which is the Functional and presentation
currency of the Company.

2.5 Presentations

For presentation of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, assets and liabilities have been bifurcated
into current and non-current, by their respective maturities and are disclosed in the notes. All assets apart from
Property Plant and Equipment, Intangible assets, non-current deposits, investments and Deferred Tax assets
are taken as current assets unless specific additional disclosures are made in the notes for current and non-cur-
rent distinction. All liabilities apart from Long Term loan, Deferred Tax Liability and Net Defined Benefit Obliga-
tions are taken as current liabilities unless specific additional disclosures are made in the notes for current and
non-current distinction.

The Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss has been prepared using classification “by nature” in accrual basis.
The cash flow from operation within the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared using the
Indirect Method.

2.6 Accounting Convention, Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments

The management while complying with reporting standards makes critical accounting judgment in respect of
items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimates or assumptions to be followed could materially
affect the Company’s reported financial position, results or cash flows. Actual results may differ from these esti-
mates.

Where accounting policy is generally applicable to the specific item, the policy is described with that relevant
note. The Company, as per the requirements of NFRS, exercises judgment in making accounting estimates. Es-
timates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognized
prospectively. Some of the major areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company’s
financial statements or where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

1. Fair value of Financial Instruments
2. Estimate of useful life of property, plant and equipment

3. Estimate of useful life of intangible assets
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Classification of financial assets and liabilities
Provision for taxation

Assessment of current as well as deferred tax
Defined Benefit Obligations

Provisions, commitments and contingencies.

0 N o U &

Impairment loss on financial and non-financial assets

2.7 Change in Accounting Policies

The Company applies its accounting policies consistently from year to year except where any deviations are
made. The same has been explicitly mentioned in relevant note.

2.8 Materiality and Aggregation

In compliance with NAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” each material class of similar items are pre-
sented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or functions are presented separately
unless they are immaterial.

2.9 Discounting

Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the discounting is
material. Since impact of discounting in our financial statement is immaterial, we haven’t applied discounting.

2.10 Offsetting

Financial Assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statement of Finan-
cial Position when and only when, the Company has a legal right to set off the amounts and it in-
tends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.
Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under NFRS, or for gains and losses
arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the Company’s trading activity.

2.11 Limitation of NFRS Implementation

If the information is not available and the cost to develop would exceed the benefit derived, such exception to
NFRS Implementation has been applied and disclosed in respective section.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Going concern

The management has made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and is satis-
fied that it has the resources to continue its business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is
not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it. Therefore, the Financial
Statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

3.2 Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate

The Company has a policy of converting the foreign currency transactions into functional currency using the ex-
change rate prevailing at the date of the transaction.
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Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated into the reporting currency of the
Company using the rates prevailing on the reporting date. The resulting gain or loss due to translation is taken
to profit or loss. Non-monetary assets are recorded using the rate of exchange prevalent as on the date of initial

recognition.

3.3 Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition

The Company has stated Property, Plant and equipment at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment provisions, if any when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Company and it can be used for more than one year and the cost can be measured
reliably. All Property Plant and Equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost includes the acquisition cost or the
cost of construction including duties and non-refundable taxes, expenses directly related to bringing the asset to
the location and condition necessary for their intended use and in the case of qualifying assets, the attributable
borrowing costs.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property plant and equipment other than freehold land i.e., the Company’s freehold building
and machinery, vehicle and other assets is provided on ‘Straight Line Method (SLM)’ based on useful life estimat-
ed by the management.

The asset’s useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the reporting date and the effects of any changes in
estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation on addition/disposal to Property plant and Equipment is calculated day wise basis. The estimated
useful lives of material asset categories are as follows:

S.N PPE Description Estimated Useful Life (years)
1 Land -
2 Parking & Access Road 29
3 Building 29
4 Resort Land & Site Development 29
5 Amusement Park 29
6 Other Office Equipment 10
7 Furniture 10
8 Resort Interior Furniture Work 29
9 Vehicle 10
10 Kitchen Equipment 10
11 Plant & Machinery 25
12 Leasehold Improvement 29
13 Computer & Peripherals 10

De-recognition of Property plant and Equipment

An item of property plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued used of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or loss.
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3.4 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially recognized at cost. Subsequently intangible assets are carried at cost less accumu-
lated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that
the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and its cost
can be measured reliably. Internally generated intangible asset, excluding Capitalized development costs are
not Capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in Consolidated Statement of Profit or loss in the year in
which the expenditure is incurred.

Amortization of Intangible Assets:

The Company assesses useful lives of intangible assets to be either finite or indefinite. An intangible asset shall
be regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of all of the relevant factors, there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected generate net cash inflow for the entity.

Amortization is recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss on straight line method (SLM) over the estimated useful
life of the intangible assets from the date that it is available for use since this most closely reflects the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The amortization period and the
amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.
Useful Life of Intangible Assets based on SLM is categorized as stated below:

List of Asset Categories Useful Life (Years)
Software/Application 6.67

3.5 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The non-financial assets of the organization which includes Property Plant and Equipment, Inventories etc. are
subject to impairment assessment if there is any indication that the carrying amount may exceed the recoverable
value of the assets. Such impairment assessment of assets is done on the basis of cash generating unit or if not
possible on individual assets. An impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss to the extent,
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

Here, the recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal & value in use. Whereas Value
in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets. Since there
is no such indication during the end of the financial year that the carrying amount of the asset is more than its
recoverable amount, impairment has not been recognized.

3.6 Investment

Investment in subsidiary

Subsidiaries are those entities that are controlled by the Company. The Company is presumed to control an entity
when it is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity. At each reporting date, the Company re-assess whether it
controls an entity if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes in one or more elements of control
mentioned above.

The financial statement of subsidiaries is fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Company and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases, The Financial Statements
of the Company’s subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as per the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The Company has made investment in Multi Pokhara Development Pvt. Ltd. and Chandragiri
Hills Paragliding Ltd. which are its subsidiaries.

There is no indication of impairment on such investments during the financial year.
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Investment in Debt and equity securities

Investments held for trading are classified as current assets and are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or
loss recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Where the Company has intent and ability to hold to maturity,
they are stated at amortised cost less impairment losses. Other investments held by the Company are classified
as being available-for-sale and are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in the
profit or loss statement or Statement of Other Comprehensive Income. However, such decision is irrevocable.

All the investment of the Company has been classified as held to maturity and has been recognized as financial
assets with Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income. There is no indication of impairment on such in-
vestments during the financial year.

3.7 Financial Instruments:

3.7.1 Financial Assets & Liability

The Company classifies any assets as Financial Asset if it includes cash, an equity instrument of another entity, a
contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from another entity or exchange Financial Assets or
Financial Liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially favorable to the entity and a con-
tract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments.

The Company’s principal Financial Assets comprise of assets held at fair value, trade and other receivables, in-
ventory, current tax assets, cash as well as advances.

The Company classifies any liability as a Financial Liability if it involves a contractual obligation to deliver cash or
other financial asset to another entity or to exchange Financial Assets or Financial Liabilities with another entity
under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the entity and contract that will or may be settled in the
entity’s own equity instruments.

While the Company’s Financial Liabilities consist of long-term borrowings, short term borrowings and trade pay-
ables.

The Company has classified Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities as current and non-current based on their
nature.

Recognition and measurement

The Company recognizes Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities initially at its fair value plus transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of the Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, except in the case
of Financial Assets and financial liabilities “at Fair value through Profit or Loss”. The transaction costs of Financial
Assets carried “at Fair Value through Profit or Loss” are expensed in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets

Financial Assets measured at amortized cost

A Financial Asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of financial asset give rise on spec-
ified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
These instruments are recognized at amortized cost using effective interest rate. This classification includes trade
receivables, advances and deposit. These instruments are mostly non-interest bearing and where interest com-
ponent is present the implicit interest rate approximates effective interest rate. Therefore, it is assumed that the
carrying amount represents the amortized cost of the assets.
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i)

iii)

Financial Assets at fair value through other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

A Financial Asset is measured at Fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the
contractual terms of financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These Financial Assets are measured at fair value and chang-
es are taken to statement of other comprehensive income. This classification includes equity securities held to
maturity

Financial Assets at Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is measured at FVTPL. These financial as-
sets are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of profit or loss. This classification includes
guoted or unquoted equity securities held for trading.

Subsequent Measurement of financial liabilities

After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profits or loss are subse-
guently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in the
Statement of Profit or Loss when the liabilities are derecognized, and through amortization process.

All Financial Liabilities held by the Company are classified as financial liabilities held at amortized cost using ef-
fective interest rate. Financial liabilities held by the Company are both interest bearing and non-interest bearing.

The non-interest-bearing instruments’ carrying value represents the amortized cost. For interest bearing finan-
cial liabilities which comprises of the bank loans, interest charged by the bank approximates effective interest
rate and the rate is considered for calculation of amortized cost of liability and the finance cost. The effect of
initial charges and its impact on effective interest rate is considered not material and the carrying value is consid-
ered to approximate the amortized cost.

All the listed ordinary equity shares are measured at fair value using Level 1 input as described in NFRS 13 “Fair
Value Measurement”. Level 1 input are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market that the entity can access at
the measurement date. All of equity securities whose fair value cannot be obtained from the Level 1 and Level
2 inputs are valued using the most recent available Networth per shares to represent the fair value of these in-
vestments at the reporting date.

De-recognition

The Company De-recognizes financial assets when the right to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or
when it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. If substantially all the risks and rewards
have been neither retained nor transferred and the Company has retained control, the assets continue to be
recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. Financial liabilities are derecognized when
the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date the Company assesses whether there is any objective indication that an asset or a group
of financial assets may have been impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events occurring after the initial recognition of
the asset (a loss event), and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The Company considers the following factors in assessing objective evidence of impairment:

e Whether the counterparty is in default of payments.
e When a counterparty files for bankruptcy and this would avoid or delay discharge of its obligation.
e Where the Company initiates legal recourse of recovery in respect of a credit obligation of the counterpart.

e Where the Company consents to a restructuring of the obligation, resulting in a diminished financial obliga-
tion, demonstrated by a material forgiveness of debt or postponement of scheduled payments.
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o Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows of a group of financial assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with specific individual
financial assets.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

The Company offsets the financial assets and liabilities, and presents the net amount in the Statement of Finan-
cial Position when and only when, it has a legal right to set off the amounts and intends either to settle them on
a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.8 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of net realizable value or cost. Cost comprises of all cots of purchase, cost of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
measured using first in first out method. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated cost of completion and the necessary estimated expenses.

3.9 Trade and other Receivables:

Trade receivables comprises of amounts owed to Company by the customers. Trade receivables do not carry any
interest and are measured at the carrying amount at which the item is initially recognized less any impairment
losses, i.e., stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances. Such allowances are affected by
way of write-downs based on the estimated irrecoverable amount.

Impairment of Trade receivables

For allowances, assets with a potential need for a write-down are grouped together on the basis of similar credit
risk characteristics, tested collectively for impairment, and written-down, if necessary. Estimated irrecoverable
amounts are based on the ageing of the receivable balances, taking previous cases of default into consideration
and historical experiences. Since, these receivables are considered good hence no impairment is reflected in the
books.

3.10 Cash and cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents have an original maturity of less than three months. These enable the Company to
meet its short-term liquidity requirements.

The majority of Company’s cash and cash equivalents comprise of call and current deposits that are readily con-
vertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of change in value. These also include
cash-in-hand and cheque. The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates their fair value.

Risk of holding cash and bank balance is the time value of money and the inflationary devaluation which is not
fully off-set by interest earned by those bank deposits.

3.11 Share Capital

Share Capital here represents the par value of equity shares issued. The Company has classified Financial Instru-
ments as equity when there is no contractual obligation to transfer cash, other financial assets or issue available
number of own equity instruments. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares have not
been deducted from equity.

3.12 Reserves
The reserve includes retained earnings, deferred tax reserve and corporate social responsibility reserve.
Retained Earnings

Retained earnings include the accumulated profit and loss and amount retained by Company after distribution
of dividends.
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Corporate Social Responsibility
The Company has the policy of allocating 1% of annual profit as per Section 54 of Industrial Enterprises Act 2076.
The Company has allocated NPR. 1,120,358 as CSR during this fiscal year.

Deferred Tax Reserve

Deferred tax Reserve contains recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differ-
ences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statements.
The deferred tax reserve has been transfer to the Retained earnings during the year.

3.13 Employee Benefits

i)

i)

Short Term Obligation

Liabilities for wages and salaries and other allowances, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service
are recognized in respect of employee’s services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities have been categorized under “Current
Liabilities” in the statement of financial position.

Post- employment benefits

Defined Contribution plan:

The Company pays provident contributions in the form of Provident Funds to publicly administered provident
funds as per the local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligation once contributions have been
paid. The Contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contribution are recognized as
employee benefit expense when they are due.

Defined benefit plan:

Staff Retirement expenses are measured at their fair value which is carried at present value of defined benefit
obligations. NAS 19- Employee Benefits requires defined benefit plan to be calculated using the projected unit
credit method with actuarial obligations being carried out at each Statement of Financial Position. However,
analysing the cost involved in actuarial valuation, the Company has not computed the cost of defined benefits
obligation by third party actuary. The Company has made provision for the same as per Employee Byelaws per-
taining to legal regulation.

Likewise, the Company has contributed @ 8.33% of the basic salary as per the provisions of Labour Act, 2074 for
the staffs appointed after the commencement of the act and gratuity as per the existing bylaws has been provid-
ed to the existing employees as at the date of new Labour Act, 2074.

Long term employee benefits

Employees have a statutory entitlement to certain months’ paid leave or the cash equivalent as per the Employ-
ee Byelaws pertaining to legal regulation. These benefits are included in the long-term employee benefits and
are presented under Net Defined Benefit Obligations by the Company.

3.14 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions

The Company recognizes provisions when there is a binding present obligation. This may be either legal because
it derives from a contract, legislation or other operation of law or constructive because the Company created val-
id expectations on the part of third parties by accepting certain responsibilities. To record such an obligation, it
must be probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate has
been made for the amount of the obligation. The amount recognized as a provision and the indicated time range
of outflow of economic benefits are the best estimate (most probable outcome) of the expenditure required to
settle present obligation at the reporting date taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation, non-current provisions are scouted if the impact is material.
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Contingent Liabilities

The Company recognizes contingent liabilities only when there is possible obligation arising from the past
events due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future not wholly within the control of
the Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or
where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on an on-going basis and
only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for.

Contingent Assets
The Company discloses contingent assets where it is possible that future economic benefits will flow to the
Company in the financial statements.

3.15 Long term borrowing

Borrowing that is expected to be settled after 12 months period is recognized in long term borrowing. It includes
Term loan and vehicle loan received from various banks as long-term borrowing as per terms of payment men-
tioned in loan document. The current portion of such long-term loan is segregated. Long term loan also includes
vehicle loan utilized. The discounting rate for the purpose of fair value measurement closely approximates the
effective interest rate. Hence, fair value of long-term borrowing is its carrying amount. The current maturity por-
tion of term loan for comparative period has been classified as short term for fair presentation and comparison
in current year’s financial.

3.16 Short term borrowing

Borrowings that are expected to be settled before 12 months period is recognized in short term borrowing. The
Current has recognized current year’s maturity portion of long-term loan as short-term loan.

3.17 Trade and other payable

The Company recognizes trade payable for amount payable by the Company for goods purchased or services
availed as a part of business operation. Such amounts are classified as Trade Payables and are initially recognized
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost. The fair value of such trade and other payable is
equivalent to their carrying amount. Hence, Trade and other payables are stated at their cost.

3.18 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognized to the
extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue and associated
costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured.

Revenue of the Company comprises of revenue from Sale of Cable Car Tickets, Sales from Food & Beverage and
Merchandise Goods Outlets , Amusement Park Activities and Resort Room Revenue.

Revenue is recognized in statement of profit or loss upon rendering of the service, provided pervasive evidence
of an arrangement exists, the tariff/rates for such service is fixed or are determinable and collectability reason-
ably certain. The Company uses billing software Umbrella for Ticketing purpose, Touche for billing of Food &
Beverage and Merchandise goods and Wish for billing of resort revenue. Discounts as per the approved memo
and internal policies are provided on special circumstances on the pre-determined tariff rates.

Other income includes rental income, insurance claim, interest income, rebate income and miscellaneous in-
come.

3.19 Operating Expenses

The Company recognizes expenses when obligations are incurred and when the revenue generated from those
expenses are recognized. An expense is the cost of operation that a Company incurs to generate revenue.

Expenses comprises of cost of material consumed, administrative expenses, personnel expenses, finance charges,
advertisement expenses, depreciation and amortization expenses.
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3.20 Lease

The Company determines whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or whether the arrangement conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company considers
whether:

e The contract involves the use of an identified asset. This may be specified explicitly or implicitly and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If
the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

e The Company has right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

e The Company has right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has the deci-
sion-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. In
rare cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset if either;

e The Company has the right to operate the asset; or
The Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used.

Leases are classified as finance leases by the Company whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. The Company
does not have any finance leases during the year.

The Company has applied NFRS 16 Leases for all the right to use identifiable assets effective from 1% Shrawan
2078. The Company recognizes a right of use (ROU) asset and a lease liability in accordance with Para 22 of NFRS
16. The right to use of assets is the present value of the total lease payments up to the end of contract date from
the start of contract inclusive of any increments on the payment of the rent. The present value has been derived
using the discount rate equal to the Company’s average incremental borrowing rate of 10%. The Company has
applied cost model after initial recognition on commencement date and subsequent measurement. The Compa-
ny has measured the right-of-use asset at cost: by providing depreciation over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

a.Less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment and
b.Adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities if any.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the com-
mencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily de-
termined, the Company’s average incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The Company has presented right of use assets and the corresponding lease liability under Note 4.1B to the
financial statements.

3.21 Income Taxes

Income tax expenses represent the sum of the income tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences aris-
ing between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statements, except
when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, an asset or liability in a transac-
tion that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of
the transaction.
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Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax
asset to be utilized. The Company has recognized deferred tax asset/liabilities on the items through which such
temporary difference has arisen.

Current tax

Current tax is the estimated tax payable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the
tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable is the best estimate
of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is
measured using tax rates enacted as at the reporting date. Accordingly, provision for taxation is based on the
profit for the year adjusted for taxation purpose in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act. Cur-
rent tax assets and liabilities can be set off to the extent enforceable and allowed as per law.

3.22 Segment Reporting

Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment is
a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other compo-
nents.

The Company is required to report on its Operating Segments in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) as defined by NFRS 8, “Operating Segment”. The assets
information and receivable balances reported is limited to the available information of the Company.

The identifiable assets and liabilities have been regrouped and reclassified.

Segment Reporting

(Amount in NPR)
Segment 1 Segment 2 Segment 3
Cable Car, Food
’ Total
Particulars & Beverage and Resort Amusement
Park
Branded shop
2079/80 2079/80 2079/80 2079/80

Revenue
Total Revenue 654,056,947 | 231,187,124 28,172,352 913,416,423
Inter- segmental Revenue
Total Revenue from External custom-
ers 654,056,947 | 231,187,124 | 28,172,352 913,416,423
Discontinued operations
Revenue per consolidated statement
of Comprehensive Income 654,056,947 | 231,187,124 | 28,172,352 913,416,423
Accumulated Depreciation & Amorti-
zation 623,858,009 | 311,439,438 1,611,405 936,908,852
Segment profit

320,079,829 | 113,137,450 13,786,875 447,004,155
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Impairment of Assets

Share-based payments

Share of profits in associates

Finance expense

(285,018,234)

Finance income 5,152,312
Rental Income 2,658,094
Other income 6,241,814

Other unallocated expenses

(351,327,615)

Profit before tax and discontinued

operations 176,038,142
Segment 1 Segment 2 Segment 3 Total
Particulars Cable Car Resort Amusement
Park
2079/80 2079/80 2079/80 2079/80

Reportable segment assets (Fixed

assets)

Property, Plant & Equipment (Net) 1,748,093,232 | 1,283,621,669 | 30,128,355 3,061,843,256
Capital WIP
Trade and Other Receivable 15,640,358 9,865,080 - 25,505,438

Investment in subsidiary and
associates

180,500,000

Other investments

155,200,000

Available for sale financial assets

Derivative Financial assets

Tax assets

Head office property

Other unallocated assets

414,045,302

Total assets

3,837,093,996

Reportable segment liabilities

Loans and Borrowings (excluding
leases and short term)

2,087,765,359

Short term borrowings 197,113,929
Derivative Financial liabilities -
Deferred tax liabilities 73,914,655
Employee benefits 15,088,590

Other unallocated and central
liabilities

223,186,599

Total liabilities

2,597,069,132
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4. Notes to account

4.1 (A) Property and Equipment

The Company has applied the Cost Model of accounting for Property and Equipment and those policies have been
consistently applied for all its Property and Equipment to all the periods presented. All categories of Property and
Equipment are initially recorded at cost. Property and Equipment are subsequently measured at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses (if any). Historical cost includes cost of acquisition and expenditure that

is directly attributable its acquisition.

Standalone
(Amount In NPR)
Property Plant and Equipment Balance as on I}dditions Disposals during Balance as on
16/07/2022 during the year the year 16/07/2023
At Cost
Land 357,057,388 - - 357,057,388
Building 1,428,653,929 46,325,653 - 1,474,979,582
Leasehold Properties 199,470 - - 199,470
Computer and Accessories 51,507,996 2,730,234 - 54,238,230
Vehicles 42,411,096 7,268,142 2,676,875 47,002,363
Furniture & Fixture 313,537,633 851,152 - 314,388,785
Machinery 788,618,774 10,691,757 - 799,310,531
Kitchen Equipment 39,005,349 1,531,589 - 40,536,938
Equipment & Others 73,114,901 3,898,552 - 77,013,453
Parking and Access Road 420,874,659 - - 420,874,659
Capital WIP - - - -
Resort And Development 331,797,185 41,810,000 - 373,607,185
Amusement Park 27,924,351 3,815,409 - 31,739,760
Total 3,874,702,731| 118,922,488 2,676,875 3,990,948,345
Depreciation
Land - - - -
Building 217,958,453 42,365,023 - 260,323,476
Leasehold Properties 199,470 - - 199,470
Computer and Accessories 23,126,657 3,269,794 - 26,396,451
Vehicles 20,095,669 2,563,656 - 22,659,325
Furniture & Fixture 88,057,020 13,016,886 - 101,073,906
Machinery 308,076,939 20,233,244 - 328,310,183
Kitchen Equipment 13,154,803 2,912,924 - 16,067,727
Equipment & Others 28,738,855 5,009,684 - 33,748,539
Parking and Access Road 90,364,598 11,396,899 - 101,761,497
Capital WIP - - - -
Resort And Development 29,195,003 10,904,599 - 40,099,602
Amusement Park 650,512.00 950,930 - 1,601,442
Total 819,617,979 | 112,623,640 - 932,241,619
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Particulars Opening Balance Changes Depreciation | Closing Balance
Net Book Value
Land 357,057,388 - - 357,057,388
Building 1,210,695,477 46,325,653 (42,365,023) 1,214,656,107
Leasehold Properties - - - -
Computer and Accessories 28,381,340 2,730,234 (3,269,794) 27,841,780
Vehicles 22,315,427 4,591,267 (2,563,656) 24,343,038
Furniture & Fixture 225,480,613 851,152 (13,016,886) 213,314,879
Machinery 480,541,834 10,691,757 (20,233,244) 471,000,347
Kitchen Equipment 25,850,546 1,531,589 (2,912,924) 24,469,211
Equipment & Others 44,376,046 3,898,552 (5,009,684) 43,264,913
Parking and Access Road 330,510,061 - (11,396,899) 319,113,162
Capital WIP - - - -
Resort And Development 302,602,181 41,810,000 (10,904,599) 333,507,582
Amusement Park 27,273,839 3,815,409 (950,930) 30,138,318
Net Book value 3,055,084,752 | 116,245,614 | (112,623,640) 3,058,706,725
Group

(Amount in NPR)

Property Plant and Equipment Balance as on Additions Disposals Balance as on
16/07/2022 during the year | during the year 16/07/2023

At Cost
Land 532,957,388 - - 532,957,388
Building 1,428,653,929 46,325,653 - 1,474,979,582
Leasehold Properties 199,470 - - 199,470
Computer and Accessories 51,507,996 2,730,234 - 54,238,230
Vehicles 42,411,096 7,268,142 2,676,875 47,002,363
Furniture & Fixture 313,537,633 851,152 - 314,388,785
Machinery 788,618,774 10,691,757 - 799,310,531
Kitchen Equipment 39,005,349 1,531,589 - 40,536,938
Equipment & Others 73,114,901 3,898,552 - 77,013,453
Parking and Access Road 420,874,659 - - 420,874,659
Capital WIP - - - -
Resort And Development 331,797,185 41,810,000 - 373,607,185
Amusement Park 27,924,351 3,815,409 - 31,739,760
Total 4,050,602,731 118,922,488 2,676,875 4,166,848,345
Depreciation
Land - - - -
Building 217,958,453 42,365,023 - 260,323,476
Leasehold Properties 199,470 - - 199,470
Computer and Accessories 23,126,657 3,269,794 - 26,396,451
Vehicles 20,095,669 2,563,656 - 22,659,325
Furniture & Fixture 88,057,020 13,016,886 - 101,073,906
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Machinery 308,076,939 20,233,244 - 328,310,183
Kitchen Equipment 13,154,803 2,912,924 - 16,067,727
Equipment & Others 28,738,855 5,009,684 - 33,748,539
Parking and Access Road 90,364,598 11,396,899 - 101,761,497
Capital WIP - - - -
Resort And Development 29,195,003 10,904,599 - 40,099,602
Amusement Park 650,512.00 950,930 - 1,601,442
Total 819,617,979 112,623,640 - 932,241,619
Particulars Opening Balance Changes Depreciation Closing Balance
Net Book Value

Land 532,957,388 - - 532,957,388
Building 1,210,695,477 46,325,653 (42,365,023) 1,214,656,107
Leasehold Properties - - - -
Computer and Accessories 28,381,340 2,730,234 (3,269,794) 27,841,780
Vehicles 22,315,427 4,591,267 (2,563,656) 24,343,038
Furniture & Fixture 225,480,613 851,152 (13,016,886) 213,314,879
Machinery 480,541,834 10,691,757 (20,233,244) 471,000,347
Kitchen Equipment 25,850,546 1,531,589 (2,912,924) 24,469,211
Equipment & Others 44,376,046 3,898,552 (5,009,684) 43,264,913
Parking and Access Road 330,510,061 - (11,396,899) 319,113,162
Capital WIP - - - -
Resort And Development 302,602,181 41,810,000 (10,904,599) 333,507,582
Amusement Park 27,273,839 3,815,409 (950,930) 30,138,318
Net Book value 3,230,984,752 116,245,614 (112,623,640) 3,234,606,725

4.1 (A) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially recognized at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumu-
lated amortization and accumulated impairment losses if any. An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable
that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and its

cost can be measured reliably.

(Amount In NPR)

. Group Standalone
Particular
7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022
Software 3,136,531 3,447,746 3,136,531 3,447,746

4.1 (B) Right of Use Assets and Lease Liability

The right to use of assets and lease liability is the present value of the total lease payments up to the contract
date from the start of the Contract. The Company provides depreciation over the lease term on straight-line basis
and the lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the average effective interest method.
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(Amount In NPR)

Group Standalone
Particulars
7/16/2023 | 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022
Right-of-use assets
Opening Balance 27,609,000 - 44,862,239 -
Recognized during the year -| 28,529,300 -| 46,690,605
Depreciation on ROU Assets during the year 920,300 920,300 1,828,365 1,828,365
Closing Balance as on 16th July, 2023 26,688,700 | 27,609,000 43,033,874 | 44,862,239
Lease Liability
Opening Balance 30,842,230 - 48,869,665 -
Recognized during the year -| 28,529,300 -| 46,690,605
Unwinding of Lease Liability :
Interest expense on Lease liability 3,084,223 2,852,930 4,886,967 4,669,060
(Increase)/Decrease in Lease Liability (1,284,223) | (2,312,930) (1,136,967) | (2,179,060)
Closing Balance as on 16th July, 2023 32,126,453 | 30,842,230 50,006,632 | 48,869,665
4.2 (A) Investment in subsidiary
The Company has investment in following subsidiaries. Details of which are:
(Amount in NPR)
Group Standalone
Investment in subsidiary
7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022
Multi Pokhara Development Pvt. Ltd. - - 180,000,000 180,000,000
Chandragiri Hills Paragliding Ltd. - - 500,000 500,000
Total - - 180,500,000 180,500,000

4.2 (B) Other Investment

Other investment comprises of investment in a Company for a new project. Details of which are:

(Amount in NPR)
. Group Standalone
Investment in others
7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022

Equity Investment at FVTPL
Lumbini Cable Car Pvt. Ltd. 115,200,000 57,600,000 115,200,000 57,600,000
Maulakali Cable Car Pvt. Ltd. 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000
Term deposit at Amortized Cost
Fixed deposit 20,000,000 - 20,000,000 -
Total (B) 155,200,000 77,600,000 155,200,000 77,600,000

4.3 Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred Tax Assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of timing difference between
the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and carry forward of operating loss.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates at the re-
porting date. Deferred Tax Assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets
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can be realized in future. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and appropriately adjusted
to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain to be realized.

(Amount in NPR)
Deferred Tax (Asset) / Liabilit Group Standalone
eferred Tax (Asse iabili

Y 7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022
Deferred Tax Asset
Balance at the beginning of the Year 156,660,170 154,083,734 | 157,182,690| 154,028,346
Proylsmn/ Release of timing difference made (29.571,667) 2576437 | (26,540,471) 3,154,344
during the Year
Balance as at the end of the Year 127,088,503 156,660,170 | 130,642,219 | 157,182,690
Deferred Tax Liability
Balance at the beginning of the Year 166,705,019 150,028,291 | 167,095,019| 150,028,291
ProY|S|on/ Release of timing difference made 34,582,820 16,676,727 37,461,855 17,066,727
during the Year
Balance as at the end of the Year 201,287,839 166,705,019 | 204,556,873 | 167,095,019
Net Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liability 74,199,335 10,044,848 73,914,655 9,912,329
Deferred Tax Liability relates to the following
Temporary difference from Property, Plant& | 79 756 103 |  832985,093| 979,750,493 | 832,985,093
Equipment
Temporary difference from Employee Benefits | (15,088,590) (1,561,156) | (15,088,590) (1,561,156)
Temporary difference on Lease Rentals (5,437,753) (3,233,230) (6,972,757) (4,007,426)
Brought forward Tax Loss (588,227,472) | (777,966,466) | (588,115,872) | (777,854,866)
Temporary Difference 370,996,677 50,224,240 | 369,573,273 49,561,645
Tax @ 20% 74,199,335 10,044,848 73,914,655 9,912,329
Deferred Tax (Income) / Expense recognized 64,154,487 | 14,044,902 | 64,002,326 | 13,912,383
during the year

4.4 Non-Current Deposits
These include advances and deposits paid as security.
(Amount in NPR)
- td it Group Standalone
on- current deposits
g 7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022

Deposit - Gas Cylinder 427,000 427,000 427,000 427,000
Deposit- Water 500 500 500 500
Security Deposit-Water Jar Sunshine 22,124 22,124 22,124 22,124
Security Deposit-DHL - - - -
Security Deposit — Internet 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
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Security Deposit — Nescafe 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
Security Deposit — Oxygen 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
Security Deposit — Telephone 4,250 4,250 4,250 4,250
Total 499,874 499,874 499,874 499,874

4.5 Inventory

Inventory primarily comprise of consumable items, raw materials of restaurants, packaged food and beverages,

maintenance spare parts, etc.

(Amount in NPR)
Group Standalone

Inventory 7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022
Consumable Stock - Kitchen Utensils 3,874,186 861,264 3,874,186 861,264
Inventory : Food and Beverage 12,430,010 10,460,643 12,430,010 10,460,643
Inventory: General Store 4,625,088 2,435,561 4,625,088 2,435,561
Inventory - Branded Shop 2,264,477 4,215,567 2,264,477 4,215,567
Inventory- Maintenance 4,578,314 3,994,478 4,578,314 3,994,478
Total 27,772,074 21,967,514 27,772,074 21,967,514

4.6 Current Tax Assets

Current tax is based on the taxable profit for the year. The amount of current tax assets/liability has been booked
by netting off advance income tax with the provision for taxation made.

(Amount in NPR)
Current Tax Assets/Liabilities Group Standalone
7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022
Advance Tax 7,644,267 5,735,026 7,254,267 5,540,026
Net Current Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 7,644,267 5,735,026 7,254,267 5,540,026

4.7 Other Current Assets

Other non-financial assets include prepaid expenses and advance paid against salary. The historical costs of such
assets less any provision for impairment are their carrying amount.

(Amount in NPR)
Group Standalone
Other Current Assets
7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022
Prepaid Expenses 6,018,821 6,199,616 6,018,821 6,199,616
VAT Receivable - 22,617,903 - 22,617,903
Advance 67,334,522 | 116,361,253 89,420,635| 139,971,042
Total 73,353,343 | 145,178,772 95,439,456 | 168,788,561
Sub - Schedule-1
Advance
Staff Advance 5,997,244 840,640 5,997,244 840,640
Mobilization Advance
Advance for WIP 48,662,618 85,111,953 48,662,618 85,111,953
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Material Advance - 24,755,645 - 24,755,645
Other Advances 60,000 60,000 22,146,113 23,669,789
Party Advance 12,614,660 5,593,014 12,614,660 5,593,014
Total 67,334,522 | 116,361,253 89,420,635 | 139,971,042

4.8 Receivables and current deposit:

Receivables and current deposit include sundry debtors, rent receivable and Bank Guarantee and margin.

(Amount in NPR)
. . Group Standalone

Receivable and current deposits

7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022
Trade Receivable 25,527,438 19,784,287 25,505,438 19,784,287
Rent Receivable - 273,950 - 273,950
Bank Guarantee and margin 771,637 839,750 771,637 839,750
Total 26,299,075 20,897,987 26,277,075 20,897,987

4.9 Cash and Cash Equivalent

This includes the cash on hand, cash on vault, balance with other banks and financial institutions which are used
by the Company for management of its short-term commitment. The cash and Cash Equivalent shall also include

the time deposit maturing within 3 months period. The fair value of cash is its carrying amount.

(Amount in NPR)
. Group Standalone
Cash and cash equivalent
7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022

Cash Balance 4,227,399 5,633,770 3,719,604 5,133,770
Cheque in Hand 1,737,478 2,144,582 1,737,478 2,144,582
Bank Balance
Global IME Bank Limited 100,917,957 62,480,616 | 100,917,957 62,480,616
Citizens International Bank Limited 1,148,455 283,341 1,148,455 283,341
Prabhu Bank Limited 106,133,167 12,142,254 | 106,133,167 12,142,254
Prime Bank Limited 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Machhapuchhre Bank Limited 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500
Siddhartha Bank Limited 4,307,444 1,598,162 4,307,444 1,598,162
Mega Bank Limited 72,633 72,633 72,633 72,633
Sanima Bank Limited 3,379 3,379 3,379 3,379
Sunrise Bank Limited 180,871 180,871 180,871 180,871
Himalayan Bank Limited 18,436,297 2,774,032 18,436,297 2,774,032
Nepal Investment Bank Limited 1,553,553 1,293,308 1,553,553 1,293,308
IME Co-Operative Service Limited 1,045,376 1,002,104 1,045,376 1,002,104
Total 239,781,510 89,626,551 | 239,273,715 89,126,551

4.10 (A) Share Capital

Financial Instruments issued by the Company are classified as equity when there is no contractual obligation
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to transfer cash, other financial assets or issue available number of own equity instruments. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction net of taxes from the proceeds.
Dividend on ordinary shares is recognized in equity in the period in which they are declared.

(Amount in NPR)
: 7/16/2023 7/16/2022

Share Capital

No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount
A. Equity Shares
Authorized
Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each 20,000,000 | 2,000,000,000| 20,000,000 2,000,000,000
Issued
Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each 15,340,910 | 1,534,091,000| 15,340,910 1,534,091,000
Subscribed and Fully Paid
Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each 15,340,910 | 1,534,091,000| 15,340,910 1,534,091,000
Calls in Advances
Total 15,340,910 | 1,534,091,000| 15,340,910 1,534,091,000

4.10 (B) Reserve

The reserve includes the reserve brought forward, this year profit, deferred tax reserve and corporate social
responsibility reserve as required by the regulatory body.

(Amount in NPR)
Group Standalone
Reserves
7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/15/2022
Retained Earning (360,058,286) | (452,691,204) | (295,355,128) | (385,802,698)
Deferred Tax Reserve - (10,044,848) - (9,912,329)
Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve 1,288,992 168,633 1,288,992 168,633
Total (358,769,294) | (462,567,419) | (294,066,136) | (395,546,393)

4.11 Long term Borrowing

The Company has recognized Term loan received from various banks as long-term borrowing as per terms of
payment mentioned in loan document.

(Amount in NPR)
. Group Standalone
Long Term Borrowings
7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022

Term loan | 804,746,885 846,626,885 804,746,885 | 846,626,885
Term loan Il 1,075,284,000 | 1,114,284,000| 1,075,284,000 | 1,114,284,000
Term loan llI 399,459,564 402,602,064 399,459,564 | 402,602,064
Vehicle Loan 5,388,839 - 5,388,839 -
Less: Current Maturity of term loan (196,404,790) | (112,553,750) | (196,404,790) | (112,553,750)
Prabhu Bank Loan- Secured Loan 2,088,474,498 | 2,250,959,199 | 2,088,474,498 | 2,250,959,199

4.12 Employee Benefit
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For defined benefit plans, although the provision for gratuity and leave encashment made as such does not con-
cur with the prevailing accounting standards i.e. NAS 19 - Employee Benefits, prescribed recognition criteria is
not practically possible. As such, the ad-hoc amount has been provisioned for in the financial statements. Such
obligations of the Company need to be measured on an actuarial basis using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
As per paragraph Q35 of the Conceptual Framework issued by Accounting Standards Board, reporting financial
information imposes cost and it is important that those costs are justified by the benefits of reporting that in-
formation. Viewing the cost constraints involved in actuarial valuation, the Company has not computed the cost
of defined benefits obligation by third party actuary. The Company’s Statement of Profit and Loss Account is
charged with current service cost for the year.

(Amount in NPR)
Particulars Group Standalone
Net Defined Benefit Obligation 7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022
Defined Benefit Plan-Liabilities
Particular
Opening Liability (Excluding pre-payments) 6,166,183 5,496,861 6,166,183 5,496,861
Interest costs - - - -
Current Service Cost 2,887,019 2,122,890 2,887,019 2,122,890
Less: Gratuity Paid during the Year 1,496,106 1,453,568 1,496,106 1,453,568
Actuarial Gain or Loss - - - -
Closing Liabilities for Gratuity 7,557,096 6,166,183 7,557,096 6,166,183
Leave Encashment
Opening Liability (Excluding Prepayments) 4,056,110 3,185,481 4,056,110 3,185,481
Interest Costs - - - -
Current Service Cost 4,914,112 2,010,790 4,914,112 2,010,790
Less: Leave Encashment Paid During the year 7,531,495 1,140,161 1,438,727 1,140,161
Actuarial Gain / Loss - - - -
Closing Liabilities for Leave encashment 7,531,495 4,056,110 7,531,495 4,056,110
Total Liabilities 15,088,590 10,222,293 15,088,590 | 10,222,293

4.13 Short term Borrowing

Short term borrowing includes the principal amount having maturity period of less than a year.

(Amount in NPR)
. Group Standalone
Short Term Borrowings
7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022
Prabhu Bank Loan- Demand Loan - - - -
Add: Current maturity of term loan 196,404,790 | 112,553,750 196,404,790 | 112,553,750
Total 196,404,790 | 112,553,750 | 196,404,790 | 112,553,750

4.14 Trade and other Payable

The Company recognizes trade payable for amount payable by the Company for goods purchased or services
availed as a part of business operation. Other payable includes payable to various vendors for the goods and
services availed. Retention money is held to enable the completion of various services on time.

(Amount in NPR)
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Trade and other payable Group Standalone
7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022
Short-term Employee Benefit
Salary Payable 6,380,391 3,199,529 6,380,391 3,199,529
Provision for Staff Bonus 17,677,089 3,077,572 17,677,089 3,077,572
CIT Payable/ Provident Fund Payable 837,439 844,796 837,439 844,796
Other Current Liabilities
Trade Payable 21,928,613 26,755,817 21,928,613 26,755,817
Other payable 29,019,984 7,326,509 28,971,384 7,312,259
Local Charges 3,173,313 723,825 3,173,313 723,825
Mobilization advance - 3,827,943 - 3,827,943
Retention money 6,125,107 40,881,642 6,125,107 40,881,642
Service Charge 2,658,013 9,545,142 2,658,013 9,545,142
Director Payable 40,129,013 40,129,013 - -
Interest Payable 72,343,423 - 72,343,423 -
VAT Payable 6,445,243 - 6,445,243 -
TDS on Contract and Service 1,839,502 824,262 1,829,952 823,512
TDS on Rent - 221,400 - 217,500
TDS other - 15,450 - 15,450
SST liabilities - 28,417 - 28,417
Reverse VAT Payable 4,810,000 - 4,810,000 -
Total 213,367,130 137,401,319 | 173,179,967 97,253,406

4.15 Revenue from operations

The Company’s revenue included revenue from ticket sales of cable car, food and beverage sold at restaurants,
sales of merchandise goods and revenue from resort.

(Amount in NPR)
Operation Income Group Stand Alone
7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022

Revenue from Ticket 524,140,173 347,290,010 524,140,173 347,290,010
Food & Beverage 107,201,960 71,457,249 107,201,960 71,457,249
Merchandise Goods 9,929,595 6,268,304 9,929,595 6,268,804
Other Operating Revenue 12,785,218 5,172,094 12,785,218 5,172,094
Resort Revenue 231,187,124 217,681,221 231,187,124 217,681,221
Amusement Park 28,172,352 21,109,060 28,172,352 21,109,060
Total Revenue form Operation 913,416,423 668,978,437 913,416,423 668,978,437
Sub-Schedule |
Resort Revenue

Room Revenue 142,222,527 128,452,961 142,222,527 128,452,961

Food & Beverage 88,282,313 88,054,553 88,282,313 88,054,553

Other Revenue 682,284 1,173,707 682,284 1,173,707
Sub Total Resort Revenue 231,187,124 217,681,221 231,187,124 217,681,221
Amusement Park
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Revenue from amusement park 28,172,352.01

21,109,059.96

28,172,352

21,109,059.96

Sub Total Amusement Park 28,172,352.01

21,109,059.96

28,172,352

21,109,059.96

4.16 Operation expenses

Operation expenses (cost of goods sold) of the Company include direct cost attributable to the operational in-
come. It includes purchase cost of foods and beverages, merchandise goods, housekeeping expenses and other

directly attributable expenses, the details of which is shown below:

(Amount in NPR)
. Group Stand Alone
Cost of Material Consumed
7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 | 7/16/2022
Cost of material consumption
(a) Food & Beverage
Opening Stock 11,321,907 10,360,328 11,321,907 | 10,360,328
Direct Cost 93,275,385 85,479,013 93,275,385 | 85,479,013
104,597,293 95,839,340 | 104,597,293 | 95,839,340
Less : Closing Stock 16,304,196 11,321,907 16,304,196 | 11,321,907
Cost of Food & Beverages 88,293,097 84,517,433 | 88,293,097 | 84,517,433
(b) Merchandise goods & Temple Goods
Opening Stock 4,215,567 6,146,728 4,215,567 6,146,728
Direct Cost 9,369,042 5,074,494 9,369,042 5,074,494
13,584,609 11,221,222 13,584,609 | 11,221,222
Less : Closing Stock 2,264,477 4,215,567 2,264,477 4,215,567
Cost of Merchandise Goods & Temple Goods 11,320,132 7,005,655 11,320,132 7,005,655
(c) Amusement Park Expenses
Direct expenses 4,674,910 2,525,271 4,674,910 2,525,271
Cost of Amusement Park 4,674,910 2,525,271 4,674,910 2,525,271
(d) Other direct Expenses
Housekeeping Expenses 8,732,113 9,951,122 8,732,113 9,951,122
SPA Operation Expenses - 358,094 - 358,094
Guest Supplies 451,498 573,463 451,498 573,463
Other direct expenses 9,183,611 10,882,679 9,183,611 | 10,882,679
Total 113,471,750 | 104,931,039 | 113,471,750 | 104,931,039

4.17 Other Income

Other Income comprises of rental income, receipts from insurance claim, interest, rebate and other incomes

generated other than from core business activities.

(Amount in NPR)
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Group Stand Alone

Other Income

7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022
Rental Income 2,658,094 4,814,760 2,658,094 4,814,760
Insurance Claim 2,845,516 1,144,402 2,845,516 1,144,402
Compensation Income - 40,000 - 40,000
Interest Income 5,152,312 2,515,662 5,152,312 2,515,662
Rebate Income 527,852 380,851 527,852 380,851
Miscellaneous Income 2,868,447 7,245,296 2,868,447 7,245,296
Total 14,052,221 16,140,971 14,052,221 | 16,140,971

4.18 Administrative Expenses

The heading includes all indirect expenses other than operation expenses. The Company recognizes Administra-
tive Expenses as and when legal or constructive obligation in respect of such expenses arises to the Company.

(Amount in NPR)
. . Group Stand Alone
Administrative Expenses
7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022

AGM Expenses 729,035 981,919 729,035 981,919
Annual Maintenance Charge 2,371,457 1,092,120 2,371,457 1,092,120
Audit Expenses 69,000 - 69,000 -
Audit Fee 915,000 975,500 900,000 960,500
Board Meeting Expenses 268,000 292,000 268,000 292,000
Books And Periodicals - 1,705 - 1,705
Cleaning Expenses 6,911,667 8,006,619 6,911,667 8,006,619
Communication And Postage 649,393 744,476 649,393 744,476
Consultancy Fee 2,000,659 3,277,078 2,000,659 3,277,078
Supervision / Monitoring Fees 1,176,629 - 1,176,629 -
CSR Expenses 520,000 525,000 520,000 525,000
Custom Clearing Charges (0) 21,103 (0.00) 21,103
Donation 412,700 195,000 412,700 195,000
Entertainment 337,526 651,740 337,526 651,740
Fine & Penalty 6,176 228,461 6,176 228,461
Foreign Exchange Loss 110,922 - 110,922 -
Gardening Expenses 428,121 332,646 428,121 332,646
Internet Charges 1,143,638 1,186,214 1,143,638 1,186,214
Insurance Expenses 8,545,099 6,995,429 8,545,099 6,995,429
Laundry And Dry Cleaning 4,699,458 2,571,920 4,699,458 2,571,920
Medical Expenses 598,866 890,371 598,866 890,371
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,013,506 3,859,230 1,013,506 3,859,230
Office Expenses 1,141,005 1,471,366 961,585 1,394,441
Discount Allowed 1,010,797 686,250 1,010,797 686,250
Pooja Expenses 544,184 198,372 544,184 198,372
Power & Fuel 43,700,749 36,436,204 43,700,749 36,436,204
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Printing And Stationery 5,297,587 4,274,963 5,297,587 4,271,463
Rate & Taxes 1,193,946 172,451 1,193,946 172,451
Registration and Renewal 970,711 1,810,995 970,711 1,810,995
Repair & Maintenance 10,695,747 15,232,278 10,679,522 15,232,278
Subscription & Membership 1,822,500 479,954 1,822,500 479,954
Rental Expenses 1,509,134 918,300 1,479,000 894,300
Commission 121,924 51,069 121,924 51,069
Transportation Charges 627,341 266,842 627,341 266,842
Travelling Expenses 430,581 206,207 430,581 206,207
Upkeep & Service Cost 1,870,571 1,051,743 1,870,571 1,051,743
Share Issue/Rating Expenses 867,527 600,593 867,527 600,593
Legal Consultancy Fees - 483,400 - 483,400
Total 104,711,155 97,169,518 | 104,470,376 97,050,093

4.19 Personnel Expenses

Salary, allowances and other incentive expenses of all human resources employed by the Company for day-to-
day running of business operation including outsourced staffs has been classified as personnel expenses. Details

of personnel expenses as follows:

(Amount in NPR)

Personnel Expenses Group Stand Alone
7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022

a. In-house Staff Expenses
Salary 55,343,996 50,776,010 55,343,996 50,776,010
Incentive 113,000 138,452 113,000 138,452
Dashain Allowances 4,925,336 3,282,816 4,925,336 3,282,816
Overtime Allowances 1,079,106 384,450 1,079,106 384,450
Provident Fund Contribution 3,465,799 2,546,721 3,465,799 2,546,721
Gratuity Expenses 2,887,019 2,122,890 2,887,019 2,122,890
Training And Development 270,167 75,000 270,167 75,000
Staff Cafeteria Expenses 8,022,180 3,794,366 8,022,180 3,794,366
Staff Welfare Expenses 565,494 35,369 565,494 35,369
Leave Encashment Expenses 4,914,112 2,010,790 4,914,112 2,010,790
Provision for Bonus Expenses 17,603,814 3,077,572 17,603,814 3,077,572
Uniform Expenses 1,632,705 1,234,270 1,632,705 1,234,270
Subtotal 100,822,728 69,478,706 100,822,728 69,478,706
b. Outsourced Staff Expenses
Labor Wages 5,800,612 2,397,458 5,800,612 2,397,458
Gardening & Cleaning Expenses 2,272,113 2,327,263 2,272,113 2,327,263
Outsourced Staff Payroll Expenses 21,181,210 20,899,979 21,181,210 20,899,979
Subtotal 29,253,935 25,624,700 29,253,935 25,624,700
Total 130,076,663 95,103,406 130,076,663 95,103,406

4.20 Advertisement expenses
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The advertisement expenses include expenses made by the Company for advertisement of Company through
various mediums such as advertisement in online medias like TVs, radio, pop up, advertisement in banners,
hoarding boards, photo shoot etc. Details as follows:

(Amount in NPR)
. Group Stand Alone

Advertisement Expenses

7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022

Advertisement - Online media 501,765 1,034,953 501,765 | 1,034,953

Advertisement - Newspapers and magazines 900,000 1,223,171 900,000 | 1,223,171

Advertisement - Banners/ Hoarding Boards 692,571 336,550 692,571 336,550

Events and Programs 1,214,490 1,197,846 1,214,490 | 1,197,846

Total 3,308,825 3,792,520 3,308,825 | 3,792,520

4.21 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment other than freehold land i.e. the Company’s freehold building
and machinery, vehicle and other assets is provided on ‘Straight Line Method’ based on estimated useful life es-
timated by the management. Similarly, depreciation on ROU Assets is provided over the lease term on a straight-

line basis. Details as follow:

(Amount in NPR)

Depreciation and Amortiza-
tion Expenses

Group

Standalone

7/16/2023

7/16/2022

7/16/2023

7/16/2022

Tangible Asset 112,623,640 | 121,162,915| 112,623,640 121,162,915
Intangible Asset 632,648 914,516 632,648 914,516
Depreciation on ROU Assets 920,300 920,300 1,828,365 1,828,365
Total 114,176,588 | 122,997,731 | 115,084,653 123,905,796

4.22 Finance Expenses

Finance expenses include interest, charges and fees paid to financials institution for availing long term as well
as short term borrowings and Interest expense under NFRS 16 Leases. The Company has booked transaction

charges for availing loan facility such as loan management fee, agency fee as expenses for the current period by
considering materiality. Details as follow:

(Amount in NPR)

Finance Expenses Group stand Alone
7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022

Bank Charges 2,777,243 1,638,490 2,777,243 1,638,490
Interest on Term Loan 277,317,272 220,990,360 277,317,272 220,990,360
Interest on Vehicle Loan 36,753 - 36,753 -
Interest on Demand Loan - 2,262,923 - 2,262,923
Interest expenses under Lease Liability 3,084,223 2,852,930 4,886,967 4,669,060
Total 283,215,490 227,744,702 | 285,018,234 229,560,832

4.23 Basic Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per share amount has been calculated based on profit/loss attributable to ordinary equity share-
holders of the Company. Basic earnings per share has been calculated by dividing profit/loss attributable to
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ordinary equity shareholders of the Company by number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

(Amount in NPR)
Group Standalone
Earnings Per Share 7/16/2023 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 7/16/2022
Amount Amount Amount Amount
Earnings after Tax 114,353,684 19,335,592 | 112,035,816 16,863,340
No of Shares 15,340,910 15,340,910 15,340,910 15,340,910
Earnings per Share 7.45 1.26 7.30 1.10

5. Disclosure and Additional Information

5.1 Financial Risk Management
The Management has overall responsibility for the Company’s risk management and internal controls system.

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal finan-
cial assets comprise investments, trade and other financial receivables and cash and cash equivalents that arrive
directly from its operations.

The Company is majorly exposed to Operational Risk, Strategic Risk, Compliance Risk and Financial Risk. Follow-
ing is the description of various risks associated and how these financial risks are managed.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of a change in value caused by the fact that actual losses, incurred for inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from external events (including legal risk), differ from the
expected losses. It can include various classes of risks, such as fraud, security, privacy protection, legal risks,
physical (e.g. infrastructure shutdown) or environmental risks

Some prominent operational risks for the Company along with mitigating factor are:
e |T Security Risk

In today’s world, use of technology is very much important. However, use of such technology is associated
with various risks of theft, misuse of Company’s private data and impact on day- to-day operation due to
loss of data. The management is planning to mitigate the risk by implementing proper disaster recovery and
business continuity plans, IT audit.

e Malicious attack on the network, systems and IT Infrastructure which is mitigated by the management by
proactively monitoring and responding timely to such unwanted activities.

e Failure in network/ IT systems and infrastructures. For this, specific back-up and resilience policies are built in
the Company’s network; any failures in network including those arising due to natural causes like pandemic
or natural disasters are instantly taken care of by the experts through remote desktop or other various mea-
sures.

Strategic Risk

Strategic risk is the risk that failed business decisions may pose to a Company. Strategic risk is often a major factor
in determining a Company’s worth, particularly observable if the Company experiences a sharp decline in a short
period of time.

Various Strategic Risk related to the Company are:
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Competition from emerging technology and services
Customer’s Preferences and high Expectations
Regulatory and legal changes

Turnover of senior management team

The Company manages such strategic risk by identifying such factors which may affect the strategies of the Com-
pany, determining key performance indicators, creating process of timely reporting and updates of legal changes
and revisiting the strategies based on changes to the environment in order to grasp unexpected opportunities
that arise.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
change in market prices. Market prices comprise four type of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk, commodity
price risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include
loans and borrowings and deposits.

1. Interest Rate Risk

Interest risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rate. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company’s bank overdraft and short term deposit. The Company manages its interest rate risk
by negotiating with highly reputed commercial bank.

2.Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes is foreign exchange rates
relate primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expenses is denominated in a different
currency from the Company functional currency). The Company manages its foreign currency risk by not holding
the receivables and payables in foreign currencies for long durations.

3. Commodity Price Risk

The Company is affected by the volatility of certain commodities. Its operating activities require the ongoing
purchases of raw materials and therefore require a continuous supply of the same. The Company manages this
risk by purchasing material and supplies from the suppliers identified by the group and the Company has long
term relation with the suppliers.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily
for trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institution.

1.Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to custom-

er credit risk management. Credit quality of the customer is assessed, and individual credit limits are defined in
accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

2.Cash deposit

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions are managed by maintaining the balances with
highly renowned banks and financial institutions only.

Liquidity Risk

The Company monitors its risk to a shortage of funds on a regular basis through cash forecast. The Company’s
objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility using bank overdrafts and bank
loans. Access to sources of funding is sufficient.

Reputational Risk

It refers to the potential for negative publicity, public perception or uncontrollable events to have an adverse im-
pact on a Company’s reputation, thereby affecting its revenue. The management has mitigated such risk by con-

ducting various CSR activities, being pro-active towards customer service and being mindful of ethical conducts.
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Other Factors

The Company is also exposed to other various risks such as political stability, changing legal and statutory re-
quirements or any other hazards caused due to wastages of the Company. This risk can be mitigated by discus-
sion with relevant stakeholders and forming long term strategies.

5.2 Capital Management

The Company’s objectives when managing Capital is to maintain a strong base and safeguard the Company’s abil-
ity to continue as going concern, so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. The Directors monitor and are determined to maintain an optimal debt-to-equity
ratio that complies with debt covenants and regulatory requirements.

For the purposes of the Company’s Capital management, Capital includes paid-up Capital and other reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s Capital management
is to maximize the shareholder’s value. The Company manages its Capital structure and makes adjustment in the
light of changes in economic condition and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the
Capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return Capital to shareholders
or issue new shares.

There was no change in Company’s approach to Capital management during the year. This risk can be mitigated
by discussion with relevant stakeholders.

5.3 Contingent Liabilities and commitment
The Company recognizes a contingent liability in following situation:

a. possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occur-
rence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or
b. a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:
e Itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; or
e The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

5.4 Related Parties Disclosures
Identity of related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Company if the Com-
pany has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or jointly control the party or exercise significant influence
over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Company and the parties
are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

Related parties also include key management personnel defined as those persons having authority and responsi-
bility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company either directly or indirectly.

The Company has related party relationship with its significant investors, subsidiaries, associates if any and key
management personnel.

Details of Related party of Chandragiri Hills Limited are as follows:
1. Significant Shareholders

S.N | HOLDER NAME KITTA AMOUNT | Percentage
Hem Raj Dhakal 2,943,338 | 294,333,800 19.19%
Chandra Prasad Dhakal 2,943,337 | 294,333,700 19.19%
Uttam Kumar Nepal 1,962,225 196,222,500 12.79%
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S.N | HOLDER NAME KITTA AMOUNT Percentage
4 | Bhat Bhateni Super Market & Departmental Store Pvt. Ltd. 981,112 98,111,200 6.40%
5 | Ambika Prasad Paudel 903,150 90,315,000 5.89%
6 | Kalyan Gurung 846,113 84,611,300 5.52%
7 | Nawa Raj Nepal 654,075 65,407,500 4.26%
8 | Min Bahadur Gurung 654,075 65,407,500 4.26%
9 | Sabitri Gurung 654,075 65,407,500 4.26%
10 | Hathway Investment Nepal Limited 270,000 27,000,000 1.76%
11 | Kumar Keshar Bista 270,000 27,000,000 1.76%

2. Subsidiaries details
Company Name Transaction Nature of relationship

Multi Pokhara Development Private Limited

1,950,000
(Rental expenses)

100 % Subsidiary

Chandragiri Hills Paragliding Limited - Company
3.Transaction with related party
; TOTAL
S.N | LIST OF COMPANIES :::‘“'e oftransac- Purchases Sales
(inclusive of vat) (inclusive of vat)
1 | IME Ltd Rental expense and 946,395.00 909,969.42
sales of service
2 | IME Management P. Ltd - - 41,200.00
3 | IME Digital Solution Ltd Sales of services - 11,082,514.70
4 | IME Motors P. Ltd Sales of services - 535,246.40
5 |1GI Prudential Insurance Ltd. Sales of services - -
6 | IME Life Insurance Co. Ltd. Sales of services - -
Vehicle Facility to 24,860.00 2,226,914.19
7 | IME Travels Pvt. Ltd guest, air ticket and
sales of service.
Global IME Bank Ltd Sales of services - 303,106.91
Global IME Capital Ltd RTS Fee 105,000.00 -
10 | Hathaway Investment Ltd Sales of services - 14,000.00
11 | Ashok Lt Engineering P. Ltd Repair and mainte- 106,820.01 i
nance
Consumables pur- 7,785,498.50 747,241.60
12 | Bhat Bhateni Supermarket P. Ltd chase and sale of
service
TOTAL 8,968,573.51 15,860,193.22

4. Key Managerial Personnel and their close family members

Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:
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S.N. | Name Designation
1 Shyam Tandukar Act. General Manager
2 Binayak Pokhrel Finance Head
3 Jhalak Raj Sharma Company Secretary/ Admin. Manager
4 Dipendra Prakash Joshi HR Manager
5 Hawal Lama Executive Chef
6 Pradip Lal Nakarmi Cable Car and Amusement Manager
7 Suresh Maharjan Engineering Manager
8 Prabhakar Khadka Head - Marketing and sales

5.5 Events after reporting date

The Company monitors and assesses events that may have potential impact to qualify as adjusting and/or
non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting period. All adjusting events are adjusted in the books with
additional disclosures and non-adjusting material events are discloses in the notes with possible financial impact
to the extent ascertainable.

The Company has applied the new accounting and Computer billing software named as Aegis HMS V 1.0 effective
from 2080.04.01, against the previously used Pro-Logic Solutions.

Mr. Sanjeev Thapa, formerly in the role of General Manager, has resigned from his position after reporting date.
Mr. Shyam Tandukar has been appointed as the Act. General Manager until further appointment of new general
manager.

5.6 Restatement of previous period
Deferred tax reserve recognized up to previous year has been reclassified to the retained
earnings.

5.7Adjustment for prior year

The adjustments for prior year in the statement of changes in equity comprise the additional
fine and penalty charged by the Inland Revenue department during the VAT assessment for the fiscal year 2076
and 2078. Similarly, the fine and penalty that arises during the fiscal year are classified under the Note 4.18 (Ad-
ministrative Expenses) under Fine & Penalty.

5.8 Reclassification of previous year figures

Provision for staff bonus amounting to NPR 3,077,572 previously classified under ‘Other payable’ (Notes 4.14)
has been reclassified under provision for staff Bonus (Notes 4.14).

L\?ACHANDRAGIRI HlLLs/Vf wmﬁ’%gﬁaﬁ/ 67



VIP VISIT

.

with Home Minister form Malaysia

Residential Parliamentary Delegates Team
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VIP VISIT

Foreign minister of Sri- Lanka

Former Prime Minister K.P Sharma Oli
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GUEST VISIT

Mr. Monty Desai- Head coach of Nepali Cricket Team
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EVENTS

Arati on month o

Evening Arati at Bhaleshwor Temple
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EVENTS

13th AGM Ceremony

Wedding at Chandragiri Hills Resort
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Notes:
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Notes:




MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Shyam Tandukar

Act. General Manager

Il :n'"l
Mr. Binayak Pokharel Mr. Hawal Lama Mr. Pradip Lal Nakarmi
Finance Head Executive Chef Head of Cable Car & Amusement

Mr. Prabhakar Khadka Mr. Suresh Maharjan Mr. Dipendra Prakash Joshi

Head - Sales & Marketing Engineering Manager Head of Human Resources
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A\ CHANDRAGIRI HILLS

WHERE WISHES COME TRUE

Cable Car | Resort | Bhaleshwor Mahadev | Zip- line | Swing | Sky Cycling | Wall Climbing | Free Fall | Horse Riding

nchebook.com/chcmdrqgirihilIs = info@chandragirihills.com @ www.chandragirihills.com




